AREA A

Dian Baker 523 Mockingbird Place Davis, CA 95616 dibaker@csus.edu

AREA B

Barbara Boehler CommuniCare Clinics 2040 Sutter Place Davis, CA 95616 barbb@communicarehc.org

John McKean, MD 718 Ashley Avenue Woodland, CA 95695 olsonmac@wavecable.com

Jenifer Newell Sutter Davis Hospital Birthing Center 2000 Sutter Place Davis, CA 95616 mjnewfam@yahoo.com

Stephen Nowicki, MD Davis Developmental Pediatrics Group DrSteve@ddpgcares.com

AREA C

Kathleen Middings 14320 Second Street Yolo, CA 95697 Kathi.midding@wjusd.org

Kristen Alexander 3707 Gaviota Place Davis, CA 95618 Kalexander@csus.edu

AREA D

Julie Gallelo, Chair First 5 Yolo 403 Court Street Woodland, CA 95695 jgallelo@first5yolo.org

Katy King-Goldberg 600 A St., Ste Y Davis, CA 95616 Katykg@cal.net

AREA E

Tia Will, MD 1955 Cowell Blvd. Davis, Ca 95616 Tia.will52@gmail.com

MCAH Staff Jan Babb

Yolo County Dept. of Health Services 137 N. Cottonwood St. Woodland, Ca 95695 Jan.babb@yolocounty.org

Ashley Logins-Miller Yolo County Dept. of Health Services 137 N. Cottonwood St. Woodland, CA 95695

Jim Provenza - BOS 625 Court Street Woodland, CA 95695 Jim.provenza@yolocounty.org

MINUTES

AUGUST 13, 2014

MEMBERS PRESENT: Barbara Boehler, John McKean, Jenifer Newell, Kathleen

Middings, Julie Gallelo

MEMBERS ABSENT: Dian Baker, Stephen Nowicki, Kristen Alexander, Katy King-

Goldberg, Tia Will

GUESTS AND STAFF PRESENT: Ashley Logins-Miller, Holly Moen, Jan Babb, Robin

Frank, Steve Jensen

I. CALL TO ORDER AND INTRODUCTION

- Meeting was chaired by Julie Gallelo.
- Meeting was called to order at 8:54 am.

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND MINUTES

- Minutes from May 14, 2014 motion to approve by Barb Boehler, seconded by Jenifer Newell. Approved consensus.
- Agenda for August 13, 2014 approved consensus.

III. PUBLIC COMMENT

none

IV. TOBACCO PREVENTION/E-CIGARETTE UPDATE

- Steve Jensen from the Yolo County Department of Health Services shared an
 update on the activities of the Tobacco program. The focus of the program
 lately has been policy work regarding e-cigarettes, focusing on the Prop 99
 objective of reducing second hand smoke.
- In early spring, the Yolo County Board of Supervisors approved adding verbiage to the County's Smoking Policy regarding not using e-cigarettes within the same requirements of traditional cigarettes. This is an employee policy but also applies to the public. The team is working on updating the current signage at County buildings to include e-cigarettes.
- Shortly after the Board of Supervisors approved the County policy, City of
 Davis contacted Steve to work on updating their policy. The City of Davis
 policy has been redefined to include e-cigarettes, or nicotine delivery devices.
 That policy was unanimously adopted. Davis is one of the first cities in the
 State to include this in a City policy.

- The Youth Anti-Tobacco Coalition presented in front of the Fair Board in July. The Fair Board approved updating their volunteer policy to include no e-cigarettes at the Fair. Although citations cannot be written for those violating this policy, those monitoring the fair can encourage and remind participants that the Fair is a Smoke Free / Vape Free event. The youth involved in the coalition and the Tobacco team will be hanging up updated signs at the fairgrounds today, and in addition, there will be banners at both entrances and an ad was in the Fair booklet that this is a smoke free event.
- The Tobacco program also has a college coalition, Saving Lungs Saving Lives, made up of UCD and Woodland Community College students. This coalition recently wrapped up a survey of students on campus regarding the knowledge and use of ecigarettes. The information from this survey will be shared with various campus committees. When all UC campuses went smoke-free in January, UC Davis also included e-cigarettes; however there have been issues of enforcing this smoke free campus policy. The Saving Lungs Saving Lives coalition will be working on another survey to identify the support of students and faculty in enforcing this policy, as one of the largest complaints has been the lack of enforcement.



- All the Yolo County School Districts have updated their policies to include ecigarettes as well.
- Other opportunities for policy work include:
 - Restricting the use of e-cigarettes in the unincorporated areas of the County.
 - Updating the City of Woodland Policy.
 - Updating the City of West Sacramento Policy.
 - Working to restrict where flavored tobacco can be sold, such as not near schools.
- The Mayor in Davis is creating a Healthy Families Agenda for his term. The agenda
 includes implementation of policy restricting smoking in multi-unit housing. . In the
 past, 9 apartment complexes in Davis voluntarily went smoke free, as well as 2 in
 Woodland.

V. MCAH DIRECTOR'S UPDATE

• Please see the included update from Jan.



• There are several new positions in Jan's branch, although all may not directly impact the MCAH population. These new positions have sparked some reorganization of

- staff. Of note for the MCAH Advisory Board is that there will be an Outreach Specialist opening for one of the MCAH priority areas, Adolescent Sexual Health.
- Both AFLP and MCAH got a slight increase in budget allocations from the State.
- There have been several new cases in FIMR/SIDS. One of the areas that will be focused on this year is to understand why families are not following the recommendations for safe sleep, although they seem to know them. Anna Sutton has also been working with the coroner to insure coroner involvement in death scene investigation when there is a possibly SIDS/SUIDS case.
- The Immunization program is holding a few "Back to School" clinics, which includes extended hours and additional days. Only certain children can be served at the Health Services clinic, including the uninsured and those on Medi-Cal.
- Pertussis on the rise. There are over 100 cases reported in Yolo County. Most cases are in middle school age kids, as their prior immunities are wearing off and they should be receiving a booster. The high risk age group is infants, as they do not receiving vaccinations until 6-8 weeks. The recommendation is that mothers receive the vaccine during the last weeks of the pregnancy and that all family members with close contact do as well. Winters Health Care is offering \$10 Tdap to all family for anyone having a baby.
- Health Services now has a dedicated Obesity Prevention Coordinator, Rebecca Tryon. Her focus is on the policy system and environmental factors impacting obesity. She is working on multiple grant applications. Our goal is to continue the Woodland Safe Routes to School work that is in process.
- Winters Services Center which will house ADMH, DESS, HD (WIC and maybe Nurse Home Visiting) services. The projected opening date is in October. It has already been identified that the walkability to the building may need to be improved. We will look for grant opportunities to address this. The address for the Winters Service Center is 111 E. Grant Ave, Winters.
- The Community Garden 1 year Anniversary Celebration will be on September 19th.

VI. HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES INTEGRATION UPDATE

• The Health Department and Alcohol, Drug, and Mental Health have combined to be the Department of Health Services. The ultimate goal will be that the Department of Health Services will also integrate with the Department of Employment and Social Services to become a single Health and Human Services agency. It is driven by the concept that services would be provided in a more efficient and effective way.



 As previously mentioned, there have been multiple workgroups developed based on the populations served. These workgroups have been working to identify opportunities for integration, such as CalWORKs participants needing car seats to reenter the workforce.

- The goal is to get a plan to the Board of Supervisors by January 2015. Current conversations around the integration include how to offer multiple services at one location (like the Winters Service Center), and how to utilize multi-disciplinary teams.
- Thank you to those who completed the Advisory Board survey. Copies of the results are available if you are interested in looking at them. Jan, as part of the Health and Human Services Steering Committee, will be asking for additional opportunities for advisory boards to weigh in on the integration and will continue to share that information with the MCAH Advisory Board.

VII. AROUND THE TABLE: MEMBER/AGENCY UPDATE

- Barb Boehler: There has been an influx of Progress House patients at Hansen Family Clinic that are in need of case management above what the perinatal program can provide. Jan Babb, Karen Larsen, and Barb Boehler will set up a meeting to address this.
- **Barb Boehler:** A recruitment has been opened at CommuniCare. The position is for a home visitor for postpartum mothers. Barb Boehler will make sure the position who is hired is connected with Jan for potential referrals to ongoing home visiting through NHV.
- **Barb Boehler:** CommuniCare is also expanding social worker services. They are starting a new group for prenatal diabetics at Hansen, as the number of patients with diabetes is high. Thanks to the group's efforts, early entry to care is now at 88%.
- Holly Moen: Holly is the perinatal program manager at Winters Health Care. Winters Health Care is looking at a new building site, which is a longer term project. Holly will be retiring November 1st. Winters Health Care has two open positions, a midwife and a family practice doctor.
- **Robin Frank**: The YCCA has a fundraiser on August 29th. It is being hosted by Bogle Vineyards. All the proceeds will go to YCCA.



- **Jenifer Newell**: It has been a record breaking year for births at Sutter Davis Hospital and it is looking like September will be a record breaking month. The hospital breastfeeding rates at Sutter Davis still look great.
- **John McKean**: John asked for clarification on where drug and alcohol usage in adolescents is tracked. That information comes from the California Healthy Kids Survey, which is completed on campuses in 7th, 9th, and 11th grades. There are other sources as well, such as arrest rates and other surveys. The other surveys do not have a strong representation from Yolo County.
- Ashley Logins-Miller: A resource guide has been developed as part of the Health and Human Services Integration. This resource guide includes all the services provided by DESS and Health Services. It can be found online at www.yolohealth.org

- Julie Gallelo: First 5 Yolo has been working with DESS, Child Welfare Services and Dr. Nowicki to develop a system to screen children ages 0-5 in foster care. Dr. Nowicki will be providing training to the social workers. The goal is to eventually expand this to include the children in family maintenance and differential response.
- **Julie Gallelo:** First 5 Yolo is working on strategic planning for next round of funding for next 4 months. The strategic plan should be adopted by January.
- Julie Gallelo: First 5 Yolo has convened a meeting for the directors of the various home visiting programs in the County to look sustainability, saturation, coverage, etc. Julie extended an invitation to Barb and Holly. The meeting is August 28th from 9:00 10:30 at First 5 Yolo. It already includes YCCA, Health Services, First 5, CWS, Head Start.

VIII. ADJOURN

- Next Meeting: September 10, 2014, potentially at Hansen Family Center.
- Meeting was adjourned at 10:18 a.m.